
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, November 4, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Hobson.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 29

Public Hearing - October 21, 2014
Regular Meeting - October 21, 2014
Public Hearing - October 22, 2014
Regular Meeting - October 22, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 11012 (TA14-0017) - Vintage Landing Comprehensive Reosrt
Development

30 - 37

To give Bylaw No. 11012 second and third readings in order to amend the
existing CD18 Vintage Landing Comprehensive Resort Development zone with a
renamed/revised CD18 - McKinley Beach Comprehensive Development zone.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0154 and Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP14-0155 - 783 Kinnear Avenue, W.K. Holdings Ltd.

38 - 51

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider: a. A Development Permit application to consider the form and



character of a second dwelling on the subject property. b. A Development
Variance Permit application to reduce the required rear yard setback and to
vary the driveway access from the rear lane to the flanking street.

6.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0178 - 1162 Montrose
Place, Tracey Neill & Sergio Sartori

52 - 61

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Development Variance Permit to allow the construction of an
extension to an existing attached garage.

6.3 Provincial Referral Application No. PR14-0010 - 3880 Truswell Road, Mission
Shores Strata

62 - 76

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider the extension of a shared dock from 78.8 meters (existing) to
101.8 meters (proposed), from the natural boundary of Okanagan Lake. This
would allow the dock to expand from 34 boat slips (existing) to 54 boat slips
(proposed).

6.4 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0147 - 1383 Dilworth
Crescent, Jason Hatter

77 - 87

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit application to reduce the south
side yard from 2.0 m permitted to 1.0 m proposed and to reduce the rear yard
from 7.5 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed to accommodate converting the
existing detached garage to a secondary suite with a connection to the
existing dwelling.

6.5 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0136 - 1398-1400 Cherry
Crescent East, Rancar Services Ltd.

88 - 97

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit application to reduce the south
side yard from 2.0 m permitted to 0.97 m proposed to accommodate a
wheelchair ramp.

6.6 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0180 - 2106 Harvey
Avenue, WB133 Holdings Inc.

98 - 109

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the



required variance(s) to come forward.
To allow three (3) additional proposed fascia signs on the south elevation of
the building.

6.7 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0172 - 1060 Kelly Road,
Nancy & Terry Lock

110 - 121

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Variance Permit application to vary the maximum
area for an accessory building.

6.8 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0187 - 4064 Lakeshore
Road, Rex Jardine

122 - 133

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To obtain approval for a Development Variance Permit to vary the required
120 degree panoramic sight line requirement for Okanagan Lake views to 90
degrees.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: October 21, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DP14-0154 / DVP14-0155 Owner: W.K. Holdings Ltd. 

Address: 783 Kinnear Avenue Applicant: Warner & Judy Kunz 

Title: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0154 for Lot 23, District 
Lot 135, ODYD, Plan 3929, located on 783 Kinnear Avenue, Kelowna, BC subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development Engineering 
Branch must be satisfied; 

AND THAT the property owner be required to register a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant on the 
title of the subject property prior to stratification to permit a maximum of two dwelling units on 
the site; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0155, for 
Lot 23, District Lot 135, ODYD, Plan 3929, located on 783 Kinnear Avenue, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.6.6(e): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum rear yard for a 2 or 2 ½ storey portion of a building from 7.5 m 
permitted to 4.88 m proposed. 

Section 13.6.7(f): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Other Regulations 

To vary the vehicular access from rear lane permitted to a flanking street as proposed. 

38



DVP14-0155 / DP14-0154 – Page 2 

 
 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within one 
year of Council’s approval of the Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 
applications, in order for the permits to be issued. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider: 
a. A Development Permit application to consider the form and character of a second dwelling on 
the subject property.  
b. A Development Variance Permit application to reduce the required rear yard setback and to 
vary the driveway access from the rear lane to the flanking street. 

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning staff supports the requested variances to the Zoning Bylaw to allow the applicant 
to use the existing building footprint and accommodate unique site constraints. This application 
is consistent with the intent of the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing to permit two dwellings on a 
property, and several examples of semi-detached and two dwelling housing exist in the 
surrounding neighbourhood.  

The first variance request is to reduce the rear yard setback to 4.88 m instead of the required 
7.5 m. The existing detached garage is 4.88 m from the rear lot line and the applicant will 
maintain this setback for the new dwelling in this location. The rear lane acts as an additional 
buffer for the property to the south, and there is a large setback for the west side yard of      
4.27 m. 

The second variance request is to vary the rear lane access requirement to allow access from 
Curts Street. Site constraints present a challenge for rear lane access to the subject property. A 
utility pole is located near the southwest corner of the property with a guywire that extends 
approximately 6 m east immediately south of the rear lot line. On a corner lot, driveway access 
must be at least 7 m from the lot corner, leaving a limited amount of space for a driveway from 
the rear lane. Staff support the requested variance for vehicular access given the site 
constraints. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties within 
50 m of the subject property. No concerns were expressed to the applicant. To date, staff has 
not been contacted with any questions or concerns regarding the applications. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking to build a second dwelling on the subject property and stratify the 
buildings. There is an existing single family dwelling at the front of the property, facing Kinnear 
Avenue, and an existing detached double car garage at the rear, facing Curts Street. Vehicular 
access is currently off of Curts Street with a paved driveway immediately south of the dwelling 
and a paved driveway to the garage. 

The existing garage will be converted to a new two-storey dwelling with a new driveway 
immediately north of the existing one. The applicant will use the existing building footprint for 
the new dwelling; therefore, a variance is required for the rear yard setback from 7.5 m required 
to 4.88 m proposed. A variance is also required for vehicular access. The property has access to a 
rear lane, but due to site constraints the driveway is proposed to be off of Curts Street. 

39



DVP14-0155 / DP14-0154 – Page 3 

 
 

Additionally, the applicant intends to renovate the existing dwelling with improvements to the 
interior and exterior, including gutter and fascia replacement. A new carport will be built at the 
end of the driveway immediately south of the existing dwelling. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the southwest corner of Kinnear Avenue and Curts Street, 
northeast of the intersection of Raymer Avenue and Richter Street. The property has a Future 
Land Use designation of S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan and 
is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. It is also within a block of the South Pandosy Urban 
Centre. 

The area immediately surrounding the property is primary low density residential with an 
institutional use (church) located kitty-corner. The City’s Wastewater Treatment Facility is south 
of the property along Raymer Avenue. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

 

Subject Property Map: 783 Kinnear Avenue 

 

 

 

 

 

40



DVP14-0155 / DP14-0154 – Page 4 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 800 m2 864.92 m2 

Lot Width 20.0 m 20.27 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 42.67 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 40% 32.79% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveway & parking) 

50% 42.95% 

Height 9.5 m (2 ½ storeys) 6.96 m 

Front Yard 4.5 m 28.64 m 

Side Yard (east) 
4.5 m 

6.0 m (to garage) 
5.04 m 

6.0 m (to garage) 

Side Yard (west) 2.3 m 4.27 m 

Rear Yard 7.5 m 4.88 m  

Other Regulations 
Private Open Space 60 m2 (30 m2 per dwelling) Meets requirements 

Parking Stalls 4 (2 per dwelling) Meets requirements 

Vehicular Access Rear lane Flanking street  

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum rear yard from 7.5 m required to 4.88 m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to change the vehicular access from the rear lane required to the flanking street proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permits. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

41



DVP14-0155 / DP14-0154 – Page 5 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum dated September 8, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Emergency access to the houses cannot be through the lane. If access to the new house is 
off Curts Road, the address shall be off of Curts Road. The existing house can remain off 
of Kinnear Avenue. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: August 20, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  September 15, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    L. Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  R. Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan & Landscape Plan 
Elevations 
Floor Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



REPORT TO COUNCIL  
 
 
 

Date: November 4, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager  

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DVP14-0178 Owner: Tracey Lynne Neill, Sergio 
Sartori 

Address: 1162 Montrose Place Applicant: Tracey Lynne Neill 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0178 for Lot 9,  
Section 30, Township 26, ODYD , Plan DAP17272 located at 1162 Montrose Place, Kelowna, BC. 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.1.6 Development Regulations 

 To vary the minimum rear yard setback from 7.5m required to 5.1m proposed.   

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit to allow the construction of an extension to an existing 
attached garage. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

The Urban Planning department supports the variance request to construct an addition to the 
existing garage, decreasing a portion of the rear setback from 7.55m to 5.10m.  The variance 
does not have any major impact on views from the neighbourhood or neighbouring properties and 
adequate open space is still provided / not affected.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant wishes to vary the rear yard setback requirements for an addition to the existing 
garage to allow covered and secure two vehicle tandem parking within the garage.  The proposed 
addition to the garage is within the rear setback area.   

52



DVP14-0178 – Page 2 
 
 

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed addition measures 2.4m deep x 4.0m wide for the purpose of covered and secured 
tandem parking of two vehicles.  As per Council Policy 367, the applicant has circulated the 
proposed information to their neighbours.  To date, City staff has not been contacted with any 
objections or concerns with the proposed variance.     

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Southern Knox Mountain & Clifton area, on the north side 
of the cul-de-sac. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 
North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 
East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 
South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 
West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Dwelling 

 

Subject Property Map: 1162 Montrose Place 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approximate location of 
new construction 

53



DVP14-0178 – Page 3 
 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 
Site Details 

Lot Area 550 m2   min 841.69m2 

Lot Width 16.5m  min 22.86m Front 
23.06 Rear 

Lot Depth 30.0m  min 35.05m East 
38.05 West 

Site Coverage of Building (s) % 40% max 29% 
Site Coverage buildings, 
driveways, an parking % 50% max 36% 

Development Regulations 
Set Backs (in meters)   

Front 4.5m 7.6m 
Rear 7.5m       5.1m      

Side East 2.0m 2.31m 
Side West 2.0m 6.5m 

Height of Building(s) # of storeys 
/ # (m)  lesser of 2.5 Storey / 9.5m 2 Storey / 7.4m 

 Indicates a requested variance to the rear yard setback  

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached memo dated September 23,2014. 

5.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

5.4 Real Estate & Building Services Manager 

No comments. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 12, 2014  
Date of Neighbourhood Consultation  August 27, 2014 

 

 

 

54



DVP14-0178 – Page 4 
 
 

Report prepared by: 

      
Tracey Yuzik, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments: 
Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Elevations 
Development Engineering Memo 
Draft Development Permit 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 10/10/2014 

RIM No. 0705-41 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision Agriculture & Environment Services (CD) 

Application: PR14-0010 Owner: Mission Shores Strata 

Address: 3880 Truswell Road Applicant: Mission Shores Strata 

Title: 2014 10 08 Report 3880 Truswell Road  

Existing OCP Designation: 
 
MXT – Mixed Use Tourism, Park – Major Park/Open Space 
(Public) 

Existing Zone: W1 – Recreational Water Use 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Provincial Referral Number PR14-0010 for the extension of an existing shared dock on 
Crown Land (Okanagan Lake) from 78.8 meters to 101.8 meters in length and from 34 boat slips 
to 54 boat slips associated with Lot CP, Plan KAS2672 located at 3880 Truswell Road, Kelowna, BC 
be supported by Municipal Council; 

AND THAT Council directs staff to forward the subject application to the Province for 
consideration. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider the extension of a shared dock from 78.8 meters (existing) to 101.8 meters 
(proposed), from the natural boundary of Okanagan Lake. This would allow the dock to expand 
from 34 boat slips (existing) to 54 boat slips (proposed). 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

The applicant has applied to expand an existing dock from 34 boat slips to 54 slips, which will 
increase the length of the existing dock from 78.8 meters to 101.8 meters from the natural 
boundary of Okanagan Lake. The maximum dock length allowed under the Council Endorsed 
Guidelines for Assessment of Shared Dock Applications is 40 meters from natural boundary.  

The proposed 20 slip dock expansion will increase the length of the existing dock by 23 meters.  
The proposed expansion of the dock into deeper water is preferred by the province, since this 
strategy protects the near shore environment from littoral zone shading and limits propeller wash 
disturbance to the foreshore.  Further, the environmental assessment noted that the proposed 
dock expansion will have minimal environmental impacts. 

62



PR14-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

Total additional deck area of the dock expansion will increase by 203 square meters; however, 
removal of another existing dock on the north side of the property will eliminate 143 m2.  
Additionally, repairs to the existing dock in 2011 reduced the deck area by an additional 90.7 m2.  
When compared with the original permitted deck area of 862 m2, the deck area of 821.3 m2 that 
would result from the proposed expansion represents a net decrease in deck area of 30.7 m2 for 
the subject property.  

Based on the overall reduced deck area, the minimal environmental impacts and additional re-
design and repair improvements in 2011 to meet current Provincial environmental standards, City 
staff support this application.  

At the time of writing this report, the applicant confirmed they had consulted nine neighbours 
regarding this project. Currently, two letters of support have been submitted to the City.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property is located just north of Mission Creek and is designated as a Mixed Use 
Tourism and Park (Major Park and Open Space Public) in the Official Community Plan. The 
property consists of 54 strata units, which are individually owned for either full time or seasonal 
use.  

The current moorage facilities consist of 34 slips and boatlifts. This was deemed to be adequate 
by the original developer to meet anticipated demand for moorage.  Additionally, the developer 
was not prepared to build into deeper water at that time, since this was considered to be too 
expensive to construct.  Twelve (12) of the 34 slips are allocated for full time usage by individual 
unit owners, while the remaining 22 slips are each shared by 2 unit owners on a 2 week on and 2 
week off rotation.  

Mission Shores Strata have applied to the province to expand the moorage facilities by 20 slips, 
which will allow 1 slip for each of the 54 strata owners.  Additionally, the shared slip program has 
been problematic from the outset, particularly with regards to boat storage and use during the 2 
week off periods. 

In the summer of 2011, high lake levels combined with high winds badly damaged the access 
walkway portion of the existing dock.  Repairs to the walkway updated this portion of the dock to 
current provincial requirements, which included a narrower 1.5 meter wide walkway, a raised 
walkway elevation above lake levels and a light penetrating decking. The aforementioned 
improvements increased light penetration into the near shore environment, which is considered 
to be a benefit to fish habitat.  Additionally, the walkway was relocated further away from the 
south property further reducing the side yard setback conflict.  

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed 20 slip dock expansion will increase the length of the existing dock by 23 meters 
while keeping the same width as the existing dock.  Twenty (20) additional boat slips with 
boatlifts are being proposed, which will expand the existing dock from 34 slips to 54 slips and 
increase the length of the dock from 78.8 meters to 101.8 meters from the natural boundary of 
Okanagan Lake.  

A total of 74 steel piles and 36 steel cross caps would be utilized coupled with low cross section 
structural steel cross bracing and cables to provide lateral rigidity.  The boatlifts will also be 

63



PR14-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

supported by the cross bracing, thus eliminating the need for any additional piles.  Stringers and 
decking will be constructed using timber.  The main walkway deck width is proposed to be 1.5 m 
while the fingers will be 1.2 m wide.  

Total additional deck area would be 203 m2; however, removal of another dock on this property 
and upgrades required to this dock in 2011 will result in a net decrease in deck area of 30.7 m2 
from the original permitted dock in 2001. Two navigation lights would be provided, on the south 
and north corners of the dock.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
MXT – Mixed Use Tourism, Park – Major 
Park/Open Space (Public) 

East C9 – Tourist Commercial 
MXT – Mixed Use Tourism, Park – Major 
Park/Open Space (Public) 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Park – Major Park/Open Space (Public) 

West W1 – Recreational Water Use  Okanagan Lake 

 

Subject Property Map:       3880 Truswell Road, Kelowna, B.C. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

4.1 Council Endorsed Guidelines for Assessment of Shared Dock Applications  

See attached  

 

 

 

 

 

64



PR14-0010 – Page 4 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No building permit necessary. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 No concerns. 

6.3 Parks and Public Places 

 No concerns. 

6.4 Fire Department 

 Upgrade/install fire protection as per NFPA 303. 

6.5 Real Estate and Building Services Manager 

 No concerns. 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: August 18, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

 
     
Corey Davis, Environmental Coordinator 
 
Reviewed by:  
 

 
 
Todd Cashin, Manager, Subdivision Agriculture & Environment Services  
                                                                            
Approved for Inclusion: 
 

 
 
Shelley Gambacort, Director, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services                         
 

Attachments:  

- Strata Moorage Provincial Referral Application 
- Council Endorsed Guidelines for Assessment of Shared Dock Applications 
 
 

65



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
GUIDELINES FOR ASSESSMENT OF SHARED DOCK APPLICATIONS   
(Endorsed by Kelowna City Council on June 11, 2001 as the “criteria by 
which staff will assess all shared dock applications which the Province 
refers to the City for comment”).  
 
The following guidelines will be utilized by City staff to assess applications referred to them for 
comment by the Province of B.C. 
 
In addition to the requirements noted below, staff may require those applying for a shared dock 
to submit evidence that neighbouring property owners have been advised of the application.  
Staff may use neighbours’ comments as a basis for considering more or less onerous 
requirements than those noted in sections a, c, d and q below.   

 
a. No portion of a dock shall extend more than 40 m from the natural boundary. 

Exemptions to this provision will be considered only where local shoreline conditions 
suggest extenuating consideration, where the Province has indicated that there would 
be no adverse impacts associated with extending a dock beyond the normally 
permitted distance and where adjacent property owners have no objection to the 
extension.   Given the generally wider configuration of shared docks, such docks may 
be limited to less than 40 m extensions into the lake provided that water depths closer 
to shore are sufficient to allow for secure boat moorage and passage.  The limitation 
on dock lengths will be given particular consideration where there would be greater 
than typical visual impact on neighbouring properties (for example, a shared dock 
located off of a peninsula or point).   

 
b. No portion of any dock runway shall exceed a width of 1.83 m.  Decking at the lake-

end of the dock may reach a width of 3.66 m over a maximum 10 m.    
 
c. The portion of the shared dock structure which runs roughly parallel to the shoreline 

shall not, in the case of single-detached housing properties sharing a dock, extend 
across more than 50% of the frontage of any given upland property and must in no 
case exceed 25 m. Input from adjoining property owners shall be considered in placing 
restrictions on the exact placement of the dock. 

 
The portion of the shared dock structure which runs roughly parallel to the shoreline 
shall not, in the case of bareland strata developments, extend across more than 40% 
of the frontage of the bareland strata parent parcel, and must in no case exceed 90 m.  
Input from adjoining property owners shall be considered in placing restrictions on the 
exact placement of the dock.   

 
The portion of the shared dock structure which runs roughly parallel to the shoreline 
shall not, in the case of multi-family developments, extend across more than 40% of 
the frontage of the upland development, and must in no case exceed 90 m. Input from 
adjoining property owners shall be considered in placing restrictions on the exact 
placement of the dock. 

 
d. The maximum permissable deck surface of a shared dock (including surfaces 

separating individual moorage slips) shall, in the case of single detached participating 
properties, be calculated using the following formula, to a maximum of 200 m2.   

66



 
 

permissable deck surface (m2) = 112 m2 + (Total lake frontage of 
participating abutting properties – 20m) * 1.05 m2 

 
The maximum permissable deck surface of a shared dock (including surfaces 
separating individual moorage slips) shall, in the case of bareland strata 
developments, be calculated using the following formula.   

 
permissable deck surface (m2) = 112 m2 + (Total lake frontage of 
the bareland strata subdivision – 20m) * 1.05 m2 

 

A bareland strata development will not be permitted to apply for a shared dock if 
any of the properties within the development already have docks.  Similarly, once 
a shared dock has been approved, none of the properties within the bareland 
strata development will be permitted to apply for individual docks.   

 
The maximum permissable deck surface of a shared dock (including surfaces 
separating individual moorage slips) shall, in the case of multi-family  developments, 
be calculated using the following formula.   

 
permissable deck surface (m2) = 112 m2 + (Total lake frontage of 
participating abutting properties – 20m) * 1.05 m2 

 
e. Docks shall not impede pedestrian access along the foreshore.  In cases where the 

dock platform is raised by more than 0.3 m above any point on the public foreshore, 
steps must be provided for public access over the dock and this access must not be 
blocked by fences or other means.  Where this solution is impractical, the owners may 
choose, as an alternative, to allow the public to cross the upland property above the 
natural boundary.  If this alternative is chosen, a sign must be posted on the property 
to advise the public of the alternative crossing.   

 
f. No portion of a dock shall be elevated more than 1 m above 342.53 m (geodetic 

elevation).  
 
g. Where a dock is shared, and constructed in front of abutting properties sharing the 

dock, the dock can be constructed on or across the common property boundaries.  In 
such an instance, the minimum sideyard setback between those two properties would 
be 0 m.  Docks must be set back a minimum of 6.0 m from all other side property lines 
(as projected perpendicularly onto the foreshore from upland properties).    

 
h. Setback from the side property line of the upland parcel, projected perpendicularly 

onto the foreshore, shall be a minimum of 6.0 m where the property abuts a creek or 
where the adjacent property is a right-of-way beach access or is in a P3 zone.  

 
i. Siting of the dock shall be undertaken in a manner that is consistent with the 

orientation and site placement of neighbouring docks.  
 
j. Siting of the dock shall avoid impacts on access to existing docks and adjacent 

properties and shall preserve the ability of abutting property owners who are not 
sharing the dock to construct their own docks and gain access to their properties.   

 

67



 
k. Dock structures shall be supported by wooden or steel piles and be made of non-toxic 

materials (solid core supports will not be allowed).  
 
l. No roof or covered structures shall be used, constructed, or maintained on the dock or 

over boatlifts.   
 
m. No structures other than those expressly permitted in these regulations shall be 

permanently affixed to dock structures.  
 
n. Dock lighting may be installed for security and safety purposes but shall be on sensor 

detectors such that the lights are only on when there are people on or near the dock.  
Lights should be installed at not less than 10 m intervals.  Bulbs should have a 
maximum wattage of 60 w.  Lamp heads should be no more than 22” higher than the 
dock decking.   

 
o. No overhead lift systems will be permitted.  Boatlifts shall be of single-post construction  
 
p. Boatlifts shall not suspend the underside of any boat more than one (1) m above the 

surface of the water.   
 
q. There shall, for single detached participating properties, be a maximum of one boatlift 

per property involved in sharing a dock, to an absolute maximum of six boat lifts per 
dock structure.   

 
There shall, for bareland strata properties, be a maximum of one boatlift per residential 
waterfront lot in the development (with the possibility of up to one boatlift per moorage 
space if the additional boat lifts meet with approval from neighbours whose views 
could be impacted).  
 
The number of boatlifts per multi-family shared dock, shall be limited to the number of 
waterfront lots that could have been accommodated had the multi-family property been 
developed as a single detached subdivision with RU2 zoning (with the possibility of up 
to one boatlift per moorage space if the additional boat lifts meet with approval from 
neighbours whose views could be impacted).  

 
r. Boat lifts should be designed and placed so as to have minimal impact on neighbours’ 

views (both when the boat lifts are in use and when they are not).   
 
s. Deck surfaces must be supported by at least two parallel rows of piles.   
 
t. No overhead electrical wiring will be permitted. 
 
u. Those participating in a single-detached shared dock must submit written 

acknowledgement that they will refrain from seeking permission to build a private dock 
off of their individual properties until the tenure on the shared dock expires.   

 
v. In the case of single-detached shared docks, the owner of the property off of which the 

shared dock is constructed must acknowledge, in writing, that the tenure on that dock 
lasts only for 10 years.  At the end of the ten years, the applicant (or subsequent 
owner) must reapply for a shared dock.  If the dock can no longer comply with the 
established guidelines because sufficient participating property owners are no longer 

68



 
interested, then the dock will, at that time, be required to conform to the regulations in 
place for private (non-shared) moorage facilities.  

 
w. Shared docks that were licensed and built in conformance with an approved shared 

dock license prior to the date of adoption of these guidelines will be allowed to be 
replaced as per the terms of the original agreement, provided that public access along 
the foreshore is not impeded. 

 
Note:   Where there are a combination of development types (single detached, bareland strata, multi-family) present 

among waterfront properties proposing to share a dock, and where it is thereby unclear which conditions 
apply to the shared structure, the conditions that are most stringent, shall apply. 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



 REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 4, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP14-0147 Owner: Jason Hatter 

Address: 1383 Dilworth Crescent Applicant: Jason Hatter 

Title: 2014 11 04 Report DVP14-0147  1383 Dilworth Cres 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0147, for Lot 
14, Sections 20 & 20, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 5070, located on 1383 Dilworth Crescent, 
Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.1.6(d): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations  

To vary the minimum side yard for a 1 or 1 ½ storey portion of a building from 2.0 m 
permitted to 1.0 m proposed. 

Section 13.1.6(e): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum rear yard from 7.5 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Variance Permit application to reduce the south side yard from 2.0 m 
permitted to 1.0 m proposed and to reduce the rear yard from 7.5 m permitted to 1.5 m 
proposed to accommodate converting the existing detached garage to a secondary suite with a 
connection to the existing dwelling. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning staff support the requested variances to reduce the south side yard and rear yard 
setback areas. The existing detached garage at the rear of the property will be converted to a 
secondary suite with a new connection to the existing dwelling. The resulting single family 
dwelling requires the setback variances because the converted suite will no longer be an 
accessory building. New construction for the connection will not be located within the required 

77



DVP14-0147 – Page 2 

 
 

setback areas. The change in use is not expected to have a significant impact since it is an 
existing structure and the rear lane is a buffer for the property to the east.  

Parking for the suite will be accessed from the rear lane; however, the existing driveway off 
Dilworth Crescent will be retained for the existing dwelling. A patio area provides the required 
private open space area for the suite. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties within 
50 m of the subject property. No concerns were expressed to the applicant. To date, staff has 
not been contacted with any questions or concerns regarding the applications.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the east side of Dilworth Crescent, north of Bernard Avenue. 
The property has a Future Land Use designation of S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the 
Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

The surrounding area is residential, with low density residential to the north and east, and 
medium density residential development to the west. The Apple Bowl and Parkinson Recreation 
Centre are further south, across from Bernard Avenue and Clement Avenue. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single family dwelling 

West RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing Townhouse complex 

 

Subject Property Map: 1383 Dilworth Crescent 

 

 

78



DVP14-0147 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Zoning Analysis  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550 m2 732 m2 

Lot Width 15.0 m 22.86 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 41.45 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 40% 22.7% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways and parking) 

50% 37.9% 

Front Yard 4.5 m 10.0 m 

Side Yard (south) 2.0 m 1.0 m  

Side Yard (north) 2.0 m 6.7 m 

Rear Yard 7.5 m 1.5 m  

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 3 stalls Meets requirements 

Private Open Space 60 m2 Meets requirements 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum side yard from 2.0 m permitted to 1.0 m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum rear yard from 7.5 m permitted to 1.5 m proposed. 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comments. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum dated September 23, 2014. 

5.3 Fortis BC - Electric 

 There are secondary distribution facilities within the laneway adjacent to the subject’s 
east property line. The applicant is responsible for costs associated with changes to the 
subject property’s existing service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land 
rights where required. 

 In order to initiate the design process, the customer must call 1-866-436-7847. It should 
be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be 
dealt with at that time, prior to construction. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: August 13, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  August 12, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 

79



DVP14-0147 – Page 4 

 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Floor Plan (Suite) – Schedule B 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 4, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP14-0136 Owner: Rancar Services Ltd 

Address: 1398-1400 Cherry Crescent East Applicant: 
Rancar Services Ltd (Randy 
Villeneuve) 

Title: 2014 11 04 Report DVP14-0136 1398-1400 Cherry Cres E 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0136, for Lot A, 
Section 20, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 11241, located on 1398-1400 Cherry Crescent East, 
Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.6.6(d): RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum side yard for a 1 or 1 ½ storey portion of a building from 2.0 m 
permitted to 0.97 m proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Variance Permit application to reduce the south side yard from 2.0 m 
permitted to 0.97 m proposed to accommodate a wheelchair ramp. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning staff support the requested variance to reduce the south side yard from 2.0 m 
permitted to 0.97 m proposed for a new wheelchair ramp. A licensed group home is located on 
the subject property and provides long-term care for adults with brain injuries. The wheelchair 
ramp will improve accessibility for residents by connecting the deck at the rear of the house to 
the sidewalk at the front of house. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties within 
50 m of the subject property. No concerns were expressed to the applicant. To date, staff has 
not been contacted with any questions or concerns regarding the application. The property 

88



DVP14-0136 – Page 2 

 
 

owner immediately south of the subject property, who will be most affected by the requested 
variance, has provided written support for the variance request. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Cherry Crescent East, between Bing Avenue 
and Bernard Avenue. The property has a Future Land Use designation of S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

Adjacent properties are all zoned RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing and this is an established low 
density residential area. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 
South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 
West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single family dwelling 

 

Subject Property Map: 1398-1400 Cherry Crescent East 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89



DVP14-0136 – Page 3 

 
 

4.2 Zoning Analysis  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 700 m2 844 m2 

Lot Width 18.0 m 23.7 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 35.36 m 

Development Regulations 
Front Yard 4.5 m 6.02 m 

Side Yard (south) 2.0 m 0.97 m  

Side Yard (north) 2.3 m 2.3 m 

Rear Yard 
6.0 m (1 or 1 ½ storey portion) 
7.5 m (2 or 2 ½ storey portion) 

18.64 m 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum side yard (south) from 2.0 m required to 0.97 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Social Sustainability 

Housing Availability.1 Support the provision of housing for all members of the community, 
including those in core housing need or requiring special needs housing (transitional, age in 
place, emergency or shelter). 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 A Building Permit is required for the ramp assembly and the ramp must meet the 
minimum requirements of BC Building Code 2012. This includes but is not limited to slope, 
handrail heights, flat areas of rest (dependent on length), frost cover and structural 
design. 

6.2 Fortis BC - Electric 

 The applicant is responsible for costs associated with any change to  the subject 
property’s existing service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights 
where required. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: July 23, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  October 1, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 10.3.1 (Social Sustainability Chapter). 

90



DVP14-0136 – Page 4 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    L. Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  R. Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Elevation and Cross Section – Schedule B 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
 

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: October 15, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DVP14-0180 Owners: WB133 Holdings Inc. 

Address: 2106 Harvey Avenue Applicant: Fibe Star Permits 

Subject: 2014 10 15 Report DVP14-0180 2106 Harvey Avenue 

Existing OCP Designation: MXR 

Existing Zone: C4-Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP10-0180 for Lot A, 
District Lot 127, ODYD, Plan 24849, Except Plan KAP88861, located at 2106 Harvey Avenue, 
Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT a variance to the following section of Sign Bylaw No. 8235 be granted: 
  
 Section 6.1: Specific Zone Regulations 
 Major Commercial: Fascia Signage: 2 Per Business Frontage 
 
 To vary the number of allowable fascia signs on the southern façade of the building from 2 
 permitted to 3 proposed in addition to 3 existing. 

2.0 Purpose   

To allow three (3) additional proposed fascia signs on the south elevation of the building. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

A Development Variance Permit (DVP04-0024) was approved by Council on July 6, 2004 for the 
subject property. The application allowed a variance from 2 permitted to 3 proposed fascia signs 
on the south elevation. 

Staff supports the proposed variance request as the impact is minor in nature and the proposed 
sign content matches the existing building and signage. The framing and sign band were 
constructed with the original building. The proposed sign locations currently have blank panels. 
The variance is to allow for new copy area in the location of the three blank panels. 

98



DVP14-0182 – Page 2 

 
 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the proposed Development Variance 
Permit application to neighbouring properties within 50 m of the subject site. To date, City staff 
has not been contacted with any objections or concerns regarding the proposed variance. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking a Development Variance Permit to allow three new sign copy areas to be 
installed in existing fascia sgin structures. The Sign Bylaw allows for a maximum of two fascia 
signs per frontage and there are currently three fascia signs on the south facing façade of 
Prospera Credit Union. Two of the existing fascia signs are located on a sign band above the first 
storey and the three proposed signs will be located between the existing signs.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the northeast corner of Highway 97N and Cooper Road. The 
parcel is zoned C4 – Urban Centre Commercial and contains a two storey commercial building 
with multiple tenants.  

Development surrounding the parcel is characterized by a mix of highway oriented service 
commercial and tourist commercial. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Various Commercial Uses 

East C4 – Urban Centre Commercial A & W Restaurant 

South C6 – Regional Commercial Orchard Park Mall 

West C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Tim Hortons/Lord Chumley’s Fish & Chips 

 

Subject Property Map:  2106 – 2112 Harvey Avenue  

99



DVP14-0182 – Page 3 

 
 

 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table   

Sign Bylaw Analysis Table 

CRITERIA SIGN REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Sign Regulations 
Clearance from Grade 2.5m min. 3.5m 

Number of Fascia Signs  Max. 2 per Frontage 3 Proposed (+3 Existing)  

 Indicates a requested variance to…  

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Comprehensive Development Permit Guideline Objectives1 

• Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable 
living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

• Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 
area’s character; 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 14: Urban Design Development Permit Area, Comprehensive Development Permit 
Area Objectives, p. 14.2. 

100



DVP14-0182 – Page 4 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

  
See attached memorandum dated September 24, 2014. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 23, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Info Received: October 6, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:   Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map – Schedule A 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Elevations with Proposed Signage – Schedule A 
Sign Drawing – Schedule A 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
 

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: October 15, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: DVP14-0172 Owners: Nancy & Terry Lock 

Address: 1060 Kelly Road Applicant: Birte Decloux 

Subject: 2014 10 15 Report DVP14-0172 1060 Kelly Road rev2 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES –Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0172, for Lot 
15, District Lot 135, ODYD, Plan 18974, located on 1060 Kelly Road, Kelowna, BC:  
 
AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
 Section 6.5.7: Accessory Development 
 To vary the maximum area for an accessory building or structure from 90 m2 permitted, 
 to 133.78 m2 proposed. 
 
AND THAT the property owner be required to register a Section 219 Restrictive Covenant on the 
title of the subject to restrict the accessory building from being converted to a dwelling; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the property owner be required to register a Section 219 No Build / No 
Disturb Covenant on the title of the subject property to ensure the protection of the riparian 
management area. 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider a Development Variance Permit application to vary the maximum area for an 
accessory building. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Urban Planning staff support the requested variance to increase the maximum area for an 
accessory building to 133.78 m2. The variance in area is needed to accommodate the intended 
uses of recreational vehicle parking and workshop / hobby space. The accessory building also 
includes one half bathroom. The application complies with all other requirements of the Zoning 

110



DVP14-0172 – Page 2 

 
 

Bylaw, such as site coverage, height and setback regulations. The site is relatively flat with a 
slight slope towards the east side of the property. The existing dwelling footprint is 135.3 m2, 
including the attached carport. 

Vehicular access to the accessory building will be from the existing driveway off Kelly Road along 
the northwest side of the existing dwelling. The overhead door on the building’s south elevation 
is primarily intended to improve airflow within the building for the workshop space and will not 
have additional driveway access. 

To restrict the possibility of converting the building to dwelling space in the future, staff worked 
with the applicant to address several concerns due to its size. The original application included a 
full bathroom with shower; this has been reduced in size and limited to a toilet and sink, as per 
Section 6.5.11 of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000. The pool’s mechanical equipment will be located in the 
building, and the high windows limit its use as a dwelling. Furthermore, a Section 219 Restrictive 
Covenant will restrict the accessory building from being converted to a dwelling. 

The accessory building is set back approximately 6.25 m from the riparian management area that 
is associated with Fascieux Creek which runs along the east side of the property. A Section 219 
No Build / No Disturb Covenant is required for this portion of the property to protect the riparian 
area. 

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has undertaken efforts to contact the neighbouring properties within 
50 m of the subject property. The applicant has received some support for the proposal as well 
as some opposition from neighbours in the immediate vicinity. Several neighbours have contacted 
staff to express concerns regarding this application. Specifically, residents have identified 
concerns with the possibility of using the building as a dwelling and the height of the building 
impeding views. As described above, staff have worked with the applicant to address the 
potential conversion issues and the building height meets the Zoning Bylaw regulations. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is seeking to build an accessory building on the north side of the subject property. 
The building will be used to store the property owner’s recreational vehicle and provide 
workshop space for hobbies. A covered patio on the south side of the building will serve as an 
extension of the existing pool deck, and the pool’s mechanical equipment will be located inside 
the accessory building. The existing dwelling located on the west portion of the property has an 
attached carport. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the north end of Kelly Road in the South Pandosy – KLO sector. 
The property is designated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan 
and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. The area surrounding the property is low density 
residential. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

1 Orientation 2 Zoning 3 Land Use 

4 North 5 RU1 – Large Lot Housing 6 Single family dwelling 

7 East 8 RU5 – Bareland Strata Housing 
9 Sandhaven (single family 

dwellings) 

10 South 11 RU1 – Large Lot Housing 12 Single family dwelling 

111



DVP14-0172 – Page 3 

 
 

13 West 14 RU1 – Large Lot Housing 15 Single family dwelling 

Subject Property Map: 1060 Kelly Road 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550 m2 1,756.8 m2 

Lot Width 16.5 m Exceeds requirements 

Lot Depth 30.0 m Exceeds requirements 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 40% 15.3% 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways & parking) 

50% 25.3% 

Development Regulations (Accessory Building) 
Site Coverage (accessory 

buildings) 
14% 7.6% 

Building Footprint 90 m2 133.78 m2 
 

Height 4.5 m 4.5 m 

Front Yard 18.0 m 30.73 m 

Side Yard (north) 1.2 m 1.55 m 

Side Yard (south) 1.2 m 18.89 m 

Side Yard (west) 1.2 m 7.5 m 

Rear Yard 1.5 m 21.94 m 

 Indicates a requested variance to increase the maximum area for an accessory building or structure from 90 m2 permitted to 

133.78 m2 proposed. 

 

 

112



DVP14-0172 – Page 4 

 
 

 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Structural Engineer may be required for over height wood framed wall, but will be 
determined at time of Building Permit application. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated September 24, 2014. 

5.3 FortisBC Inc – Electric 

 There are primary distribution facilities within Kelly Road. The applicant is responsible for 
costs associated with any change to the subject property’s existing service, if any, as well 
as the provision of appropriate land rights where required. 

 It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but 
can be dealt with at that time, prior to construction. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 9, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Completed: September 4, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Elevations – Schedule B 
Floor Plan – Schedule C 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
 

113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: October 15, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: DVP14-0187 Owners: Rex Jardine 

Address: 4064 Lakeshore Road Applicant: Thomson Dwellings Inc 

Subject: 2014 10 15 Report DVP14-0187 4064 Lakeshore Road 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0187, for Lot 1, 
Sec. 1, Twp. 25 and Sec 6, Twp. 26, ODYD, Plan KAP89719, located on 4064 Lakeshore Road, 
Kelowna, BC, subject to the following: 
 
THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
 Section 6.11.1: General Development Regulations – Okanagan Lake Sight Line 
  
 To vary the Okanagan Lake 120 Degree Panoramic Sight Line from 120 degrees required to 
           90 degrees  proposed. 

2.0 Purpose   

To obtain approval for a Development Variance Permit to vary the required 120 degree 
panoramic sight line requirement for Okanagan Lake views to 90 degrees. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

The Urban Planning Department is supportive of the sight line variance as proposed for the below 
reasons.  
 
Zoning regulations provide a useful standard to be applied in most situations where a hardship 
does not occur and which should typically be upheld to ensure that the intent of the regulation is 
preserved.  The intent of Section 6.11 of the Zoning Bylaw with respect to Okanagan Lake sight 
lines is to “not obstruct views of the lake from the established abutting development”.  This 
policy places the onus on the proponent of a new development to ensure adjacent occupants are 

122



DVP14-0187 – Page 2 

 
 

afforded a reasonable panoramic view and are provided an opportunity to be consulted when the 
proposed development does not conform. 

 
A couple of factors can result in a hardship being created on a given lakefront lot with respect to 
Okanagan Lake sight lines.  Typically hardships would relate to the undulating nature of the 
shoreline, lot-line orientation/lot configuration, or the location of existing homes.  In this case, 
the variance request largely stems from the location of an existing dwelling located at 4074/4076 
Lakeshore Road, south of the subject property.  Should 4074/4076 Lakeshore Road redevelop, 
there is a strong likelihood that the dwelling would be located closer to Okanagan Lake and this 
would either diminish or eliminate the sight line impacts created by the proposed development. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property is a large urban residential lot located in the North Mission sector.  The 
property is 0.77 hectares in size and has a current Subdivision Application pending to create 2 
parcels. The requested variance is for the south portion of the subject parcel. The parcel is 
located on Okanagan Lake. As a result of the proximity to the lake, the property is subject to the 
Okanagan Lake Sight Lines constraints. The applicants propose a new development which does 
not conform with the current zoning requirements. 

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed sight line reduction affects one neighbour located to the south and whose home is 
set quite far back from Okanagan Lake, relatively speaking.  The variance to the sight line 
requirement would result in the unobstructed sight line for the southern property being reduced 
from 60°required to 30° proposed.  The adjacent landowner has been contacted by the applicant 
and has noted that they are opposed to the proposed variance request.   

4.3 Site Context 

The adjacent zones and land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM6 – High Rise Apartment Housing Imperial Apartments 

East 
RU1- Large Lot Housing / P2-Educational & 
Minor Institutional 

Residential / First Lutheran Church & 
School 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

West None Okanagan Lake 

 

  

123



DVP14-0187 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 4064 Lakeshore Road 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

General Development Regulations 
Okanagan Lake Sightlines 120° 90°  

 Indicates a requested variance to…  

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Lakeside development.1 Incorporate distinctive massing articulation, architectural treatment, 
and appropriate materials on the lakeside frontage. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

See attached memorandum dated September 29, 2014. 

6.2 IPLAN – Parks & Public Places 

 No Comment 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 14, 15.5 (Urban Design DP Guidelines Chapter). 

Approximate Rear Corner 
of the Existing Affected 
Neighbour’s Residence 

Approximate Rear Corner of 
Other Existing Residences 

124



DVP14-0187 – Page 4 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 9, 2014 
Date Amended Drawings Received:  October 9, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:   Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map – Schedule A 
Site Plan – Schedule A 
Floor Plan – Schedule A 
Conceptual Elevations – Schedule A 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 
 
 

125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - October 21, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - October 21, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - October 22, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - October 22, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 11012 (TA14-0017).pdf
	6.1 2014 11 04 Report DP14-0154 DVP14-0155 783 Kinnear Ave.pdf
	6.1 2014 11 04 Attachments DP14-0154 DVP14-0155.pdf
	6.2 2014 11 04 Report DVP14-0178 1162 Montrose Pl.pdf
	6.2 2014 11 04 Attachments DVP14-0178 1162 Montrose Pl.pdf
	6.3 2014 10 08 Report 3880 Truswell Road.pdf
	6.3 Shared Dock Guidelines as approved June 2001.pdf
	6.3 2014-06-26 Attachment Mission Shores - Dock Management Plan.pdf
	6.4 2014 11 04 Report DVP14-0147  1383 Dilworth Cres.pdf
	6.4 2014 11 04 Attachment DVP14-0147 1383 Dilworth Cres.pdf
	6.5 2014 11 04 Report DVP14-0136 1398-1400 Cherry Cres E.pdf
	6.5 2014 11 04 Attachment DVP14-0136 1398-1400 Cherry Cres E.pdf
	6.6 2014 10 15 Report DVP14-0180 2106 Harvey Avenue.pdf
	6.6 2014 11 04 Attachment DVP14-0180 2106 Harvey Ave.pdf
	6.7 2014 10 15 Report DVP14-0172 1060 Kelly Road rev2.pdf
	6.7 2014 11 04 Attachment DVP14-0172 1060 Kelly Rd.pdf
	6.8 2014 10 15 Report DVP14-0187 4064 Lakeshore Road.pdf
	6.8 2014 11 04 Attachment DVP14-0187 4064 Lakeshore Rd.pdf

